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Chair Parnell: 
[Roll called.]  I will open the hearing on Assembly Bill 327, which is brought 
forth by Assemblyman Denis. 
 
Assembly Bill 327:  Requires the Board of Regents of the University of Nevada 

to submit a biennial report concerning the participation of certain 
protected classes in the Nevada System of Higher Education. 
(BDR 34-1063) 

 
You will be receiving two documents regarding A.B. 327.  One is entitled 
Shaping Nevada’s Future: What the State Can Do to Invest in College Access 
and Success (Exhibit C) and the other is NSHE Diversity Report 2006-07 
(Exhibit D). 
 
Assemblyman Mo Denis, Clark County Assembly District No. 28: 
In the university system, as we work to make education available to all 
Nevadans, one of the things we look at are diversity reports.  Diversity reports 
help us understand if discrepancies exist.  Although we already have the reports 
for many of the colleges and universities, they tend to be inconsistent.  This bill 
helps to provide that information in a consistent manner from all of the 
participating organizations.  I think it will be helpful to make sure everyone who 
is providing this information is on the same page.  With that, I have Lucy Flores 
here who works for the University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Diversity Department.  
She is one of my constituents and also helped write this bill.  Also, Crystal Abba 
is here who will provide further explanation regarding A.B. 327. 
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Lucy Flores, Chair, Education Committee, Nevada Commission on Minority 
Affairs: 

I am here representing the Commission on Minority Affairs.  I am the chair of 
the Education Committee from that Commission.  Unfortunately, our bill draft 
request (BDR) deadline is very early in the year, so by the time I developed this 
idea and researched whether it was a feasible option, the deadline had passed.  
I then contacted Assemblyman Denis, and we began talking about how we 
could move forward with this.  I will begin by stating what this bill intends to 
do:  it provides another level of accountability for the Board of Regents and the 
Nevada System of Higher Education (NSHE), with respect to the implementation 
and compliance of its own diversity policies.  As you may know, the Board of 
Regents is an independent body with its own constitutional authority; however, 
it is the State Legislature that funds higher education.  Therefore, it is not 
outside the purview of the Legislature to ask the Regents in the system to 
account for those expenditures as it relates to their diversity policies.   
 
I want to commend the Nevada System of Higher Education for participating 
and creating the report titled Shaping Nevada’s Future:  What the State Can Do 
to Invest in College Access and Success (Exhibit C).  The report was published 
in November 2008 by the Institute of Higher Education Policy (IHEP) and the 
report is fantastic.  I hope that each one of you will take a moment to read 
through the reports available at the Nevada System of Higher Education’s 
website.  Much of the information I am providing you with today comes from 
the report.  The Board of Regents creates its own policies, and it is up to it and 
the Nevada System of Higher Education (NSHE) to enforce them.  The Board of 
Regents has had a diversity rated policy for some time now.  Title 4, Chapter 8, 
section 2 of their handbook, which states, “General Policy of the Board of 
Regents on Recruitment, Admissions, and Retention of Students”, has been in 
effect since 1988.  While I am not completely certain of the demographics 
of Nevada, in 1988 I would bet the current demographics of higher education 
reflect pre-1988 population demographics and not the current population 
demographics of the state.  This is a good example of why the general public 
and the Legislature need to know what the Regents in the system are doing to 
address the underrepresentation of students of color on their respective 
campuses.   
 
So, why does diversity matter?  According to the NSHE 2006-07 Diversity 
Report (Exhibit D), minorities make up 38.7 percent of Nevada’s population.  
According to the state demographer, minorities will make up 49.3 percent by 
2026, with Hispanics making up a third of the state’s population.  If Nevada 
intends to diversify its economy with high-skilled, high-wage jobs, then we are 
going to need a qualified workforce.  Currently 46 percent of African-American 
Nevada residents and 43 percent of Native Americans have no postsecondary 
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education experience.  Perhaps the biggest concern for Nevada is the rapidly 
growing Hispanic population, with approximately 74 percent of those residents 
having no postsecondary education experience.  The 61 percent of Nevada 
residents who do have postsecondary experience are white residents, yet they 
make up less of the overall population.  When we juxtapose those numbers you 
can see that we have a problem.   
 
The economic incentives for increasing diversity are obvious, but the returns 
from postsecondary education are not limited to economic benefits.  On 
page 10 (Exhibit C), you can see a table which outlines both the economic and 
social benefits for the public and private sector of higher education.  You can 
see that on the private, economic side there is personal and professional 
mobility, improved working conditions, higher savings level, employment, higher 
salaries and benefits.  Public, economic benefits are a decreased reliance on 
government financial support, which is very pertinent to today’s economic 
conditions, increased workforce flexibility, increased consumption, greater 
productivity, and increased tax revenue.  The social portion for the public side is 
the improved ability to adapt to use of technology, a greater social cohesion, an 
appreciation for diversity, and an increased quality of civic life.  We all know 
that the more education you have, the more public and private benefits there 
are.   
 
This report (Exhibit C) does not only explain the issues we are having with 
higher education in Nevada, especially relating to low income and minority 
population, but it also gives many recommendations.  One of these 
recommendations illustrates how the primary stakeholders in Nevada should 
interact in order to improve higher education.  Academic institutions should 
offer accountability to the state government, as you can see by the illustration 
on the last page.  This bill calls for the NSHE and the Board of Regents to do 
that.  It also goes a step forward and requires that the same information be 
made available to the public via their website.  The system and the Regents 
have said, “NSHE colleges and universities appear to not be adequately 
capturing minority students who graduate from high school and the 
K-12 system is losing too many minority students who never graduate from high 
school,” from their 2006-07 Diversity Report page 9 (Exhibit D).  In closing, 
the Legislature and the general public should know what is being done to 
address this problem that NSHE is very well aware exists.  I will be happy 
to take any questions. 
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Crystal Abba, Assistant Vice Chancellor for Academic and Student Affairs, 
Director of Public Policy, Nevada System of Higher Education, Reno, 
Nevada: 

I would like to thank Assemblyman Denis for bringing forward this important 
piece of legislation, and I would also like to thank Ms. Flores for clearly 
articulating the importance of reporting this type of information.  On that note, 
this bill supports diversity in the same way the Board of Regents has 
exemplified in its longstanding history shown in the Board policies.  For 
example, the Board currently has a standing committee on cultural diversity that 
is chaired by Regent Cedric Crear.  There is a system-wide diversity council 
named Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Council (EDIC), which is manned by 
diversity officers from each institution.  Also, the Board’s master plan includes 
goals specific to diversity.  Finally, in Board policy, it is mandated that we 
create the Diversity Report (Exhibit D).  This report is posted on our website; 
therefore, that information is available to the public.  In the bill, section 1, 
subsection 3 outlines the laundry list of items that should be included in this 
report.  For the most part, the majority of what is indicated here is currently 
included in the report.  If you went back and looked at earlier versions of the 
report, we would not have included all the data that we include now since we 
have learned more and more each year the report is published.  We started to 
realize the nuances in the data, and the report has improved considerably in 
the recent years, particularly the last three or four years.   
 
However, there is still room to improve.  One of the things that will be included 
in the next report, that is not included in the report before you today (Exhibit D), 
is a narrative from each institution that indicates the diversity efforts they have 
made to improve diversity recruitment and retention on their campuses, which is 
specifically noted, and which leads to graduation rates that is noted in 
section 1, subsection 3, paragraph (g).  If you have any questions specific to 
the current diversity report, I would be happy to answer them.  
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
I think it is laudable that we are looking at increasing our enrollment, no matter 
who it is.  Hopefully, we are not talking about capping enrollment and meeting 
quotas as much as we are increasing enrollment.   
 
Assemblyman Munford: 
What is the graduation rate from higher education of minorities? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
On page 11 (Exhibit D), for UNLV the graduation rate for minorities is 
38.4 percent which exceeds that for white and non-Hispanic groups. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Assembly/ED/AED684D.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Assembly/ED/AED684D.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Assembly/ED/AED684D.pdf�


Assembly Committee on Education 
March 23, 2009 
Page 7 
 

 

Lucy Flores: 
I would like to elaborate on that.  This is one of the issues that we have in 
terms of the way this information is being reported.  On this same page, there 
are the retention rates of first-timed degree seeking freshmen across all  
NSHE institutions.  In that particular area, the retention rates are actually worse 
than white students.  So it is broken down by ethnicity, and then it is compared 
to the control group (white, non-Hispanic students).  When you look at the 
graduation rate, it is all lumped together in a big minority group and shows how 
that minority group compares to the white control group.  The numbers are 
skewed because the Asian-American population is graduating at a higher 
percentage rate than the white population.  So it makes it appear as though all 
minorities are doing the same, if not better than the white non-Hispanic control 
group.  Yet, if you break the groups down by ethnicity, you see that they are 
not.  That is one of the things that I wanted to point out in terms of the 
information that we are getting.  That is obviously one of the things we can 
improve on, in terms of reporting. 
 
Crystal Abba: 
When you look at page 11 of the Diversity Report (Exhibit D), the purpose of 
the graph was to compare full-time to part-time students, showing that across 
all ethnic categories, those students that are full-time do better than students 
that are part-time.  However, the point that Ms. Flores brings up with respect to 
providing an aggregate figure across the system for minorities, we can easily 
amend the report to include that type of information.  Another thing I would like 
to point out is that all of this information is available through the National 
Center for Education Statistics; therefore, anyone in the public can access this 
information whenever they wish.  With respect to diversity data there is so 
much information available on that website, it is all a matter of how you divide 
the data.  Unfortunately, sometimes it is difficult to divide the data so that 
everyone is happy with the outcome.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
This bill is putting into statute that the Nevada System of Higher Education will 
create this report, even though they currently are doing so.  Is that correct? 
 
Assemblyman Denis: 
That is correct.  It also puts into statute the specific type of information that is 
necessary so that the reports are consistent.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
I just wanted to clarify that.  Page 11 (Exhibit D) shows our community college 
graduation rates are very low.  Are we undergoing any efforts to try to turn 
those numbers around?  They are very dismal.  I assume that means these 
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students did not complete a two-year program at the community college, is that 
correct? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
That is correct.  Those are completion rates so it is indicative of completing the 
program and receiving your degree.  There are efforts ongoing at all 
the campuses to address these.  If you look on our website at our performance 
indicators, you can see a broader picture of completion rates that is not just 
narrowed to ethnic categories.  But you are absolutely right, it is an area that 
we can continue to improve in and need to improve in.  
 
Assemblywoman Dondero Loop: 
Do the community college graduation rates include students that go there and 
do not get a two-year degree and just transition into the University of Nevada, 
Las Vegas (UNLV)?  How would they be tracked? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
To the extent that they finish a transfer degree, they are included here.  If they 
just have credits and they transfer they would be included in that rate when 
they graduate from the four-year institution.  So they are tracked, it is just a 
matter of where they end. 
 
Assemblywoman Dondero Loop: 
So that may account for the reason that this seems lower? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
To some extent yes, but not to the extent you hope it would.  However, we do 
have other performance indicators on transfer rates. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
It would be interesting to have a report on that in two years to see if those have 
increased.  I assume with the economy in its current state, you are finding 
an increase in your student population, especially in community colleges.  
Children realize they need to learn job training and new skills to give them more 
options.  I would hope that we would see an increase and we can help these 
students graduate.  
 
Assemblyman Stewart: 
In our diverse economy today, with mixed marriages, what is a white 
non-Hispanic? 
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Crystal Abba: 
On page 5 (Exhibit D) the U.S. Department of Education has defined a white 
non-Hispanic as a person having origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, 
North Africa, or the Middle East, except those of Hispanic origin.  That is the 
federal definition. 
 
Assemblyman Stewart: 
I have grandchildren that are a quarter Latino, what would they be considered? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
When a student fills out an admissions application, one of the boxes asks them 
what their ethnicity is.  We are in the process now, pursuant to federal law, 
of changing the way we are asking that question so it will now be in two parts.  
The first question is: “Are you Hispanic?” and the second question is: “Which of 
these categories do you consider yourself in?”  This question, to some extent, 
would address the situation you have described.  I apologize I do not have that 
information in front of me, but I can provide it to the Committee because it is 
very interesting in terms of the way the federal government is now framing that 
question.  In the future, for some years, it will be more difficult for us to have 
longitudinal data because we are changing the way we are reporting this 
information to get to the very issue you have raised. 
 
Assemblyman Stewart: 
What would our president be considered in your universe? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
He would be whatever he disclosed. 
 
Lucy Flores: 
It is self-reporting; what you consider yourself to be and what box you decide to 
check.  All the demographic information that we have is based on what is 
disclosed to us.  It is not mandatory; we have percentages of the student 
population that is either undisclosed or none because they do not fill out the 
box. 
 
Assemblyman Munford: 
So students who are filling out the application can refuse to disclose that 
information? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
I would say that students can select not to disclose, but you are correct, it is 
their option.  We cannot, under the law, force students to fill that box out. 
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Chair Parnell: 
That is also not mandatory when you are applying for a job or filling out any 
document; the race boxes can never be required to be filled out. 
 
Assemblyman McArthur: 
In looking at A.B. 327, the top part includes women and in the bottom portion 
women are not included.  I was just curious whether that was an oversight or if 
women are already represented? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
That was unintentional.  This was based on the way the report is currently 
organized, however, I would add that a couple of years ago we did a report to 
the Board of Regents indicating that when you look at the gender of our 
enrollment, males are going way down.  It is interesting, in this case, that 
women are certainly not the minority.  Across the board, women are going up in 
every category.  
 
Assemblyman McArthur: 
Basically, the first part is saying that you want a report on them and the second 
part is that we do not need to do anything to help them out because they are 
fully represented. 
 
Crystal Abba: 
Correct.  Given the fact that the Board is so focused on issues of that nature, to 
the extent that if that trend ever changed, I can assure you that the focus of the 
Board of Regents would change and our reporting would change as well. 
 
Assemblyman Stewart: 
Back in the 1960-70s when women were not going to graduate schools and 
universities as much, we placed major emphasis on encouraging women to 
educate themselves.  Now the opposite is true.  We have a minority of men 
going to graduate school, with the exception of engineering.  Do we have any 
movement to try to encourage males? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
I am not aware of a specific recruiting mechanism focused on men; however, 
I am not saying that they do not exist. 
 
Assemblyman Stewart: 
If not, why not? 
 
Crystal Abba: 
I do not know but I will find out and get back to you. 
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Assemblyman Denis: 
In closing, I want to thank the university system for working with us on this.  
Initially, when we started out, there were some discrepancies and we were able 
to work together to come to a fair conclusion.  I appreciate that very much, 
thank you. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
It will be interesting to watch it over the years so we are able to see the 
changes we experience.  With that, I will close the hearing on A.B. 327. I will 
now open the hearing on Assembly Bill 243, which is sponsored by 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca. 
 
Assembly Bill 243:  Requires certain employers to grant leave to parents, 

guardians and custodians of children to participate in certain school 
activities. (BDR 34-670) 

 
Assemblywoman April Mastroluca, Clark County Assembly District No. 29: 
Assembly Bill 243 is designed to allow parents to be involved in their children’s 
education by allowing them to take up to four hours off of work per school 
year.  This would be unpaid by the employer and would only affect businesses 
that employ 50 or more employees.  The time off would be a mutually agreed 
upon time.  The original language in the bill states that a 48-hour notice must be 
given for parental leave.  I have submitted an amendment to change that notice 
to 5 days (Exhibit E).   
 
Why do we need parent involvement?  Over 20 years of research has proven 
that when parents are involved, students have higher grades, higher graduation 
rates, better school attendance, are more likely to attend college, and have 
decreased use of drugs and alcohol.  I have provided you with a few articles 
about the impact that parent involvement can have (Exhibit F, Exhibit G, 
Exhibit H, Exhibit I, Exhibit J, and Exhibit K).  Some of the testimony you will 
hear in support of this bill will be from parents and groups representing parents 
who can attest to the value of parent involvement.  Today, we have an 
opportunity for Nevada to be pro-active about education instead of reactive.  
Assembly Bill 243 will benefit business as well as education.  Surveys have 
shown that productivity and profits increase when employees feel they can 
balance work and family responsibilities.  The second part of this bill extends 
the law to cover private schools in the same manner.  Thank you for the 
opportunity to present this bill and I will be happy to answer any questions. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Thank you.  Are there any questions at this time for  
Assemblywoman Mastroluca? 
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Assemblyman McArthur: 
I do not see where it includes private schools within the bill. 
 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca: 
Section 4, page 3, line 30, is the provision that includes private schools.   
 
Assemblyman McArthur: 
Was there a reason it was left out in line 24? 
 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca: 
This language is based on existing statute that only covered public schools that 
would allow parents to take time off if their child was ill or had a required 
parent-teacher conference; you were allowed to leave without penalty.  This is 
where Legal decided to put this into the statute.  The original law only covered 
public schools, so we put in a provision that would allow parents of students in 
private schools to also be excused from work for parent involvement purposes. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
On page 2 in section 1 we are referencing Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 
Chapter 392, which is public schools.  If you go to section 3, which continues 
through NRS Chapter 394, that is private schools.  If you look on line 44, at the 
bottom of page 3, you will see a specific reference to private schools.  
 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca: 
I have been having discussions with different groups from the business 
community to find some common ground.  It is my understanding that they are 
in support of the concept of this bill and just had a few clarification questions, 
so we are working on a few amendments.  Some items we have discussed 
are that this will apply during school hours, a mutually agreed upon time will be 
done in writing, and the blocks of time will be taken in one hour minimums.  
We are also talking about moving the effective date of this bill to October 2009 
in order to give the business community the opportunity to put this into place.   
 
Chair Parnell: 
When we talked briefly about this we decided to specify somewhere that this 
would only occur during a typical time when a student would be in school, so it 
would eliminate evenings and weekends.  Someone is working on that 
language.  
 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca: 
I have Allison Turner from the Nevada Parent Teacher Association (NPTA), a 
representative from Nevadans for Quality Education, and a parent in Las Vegas.  
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Allison Turner, President-Elect, Nevada Parent Teacher Association, Las Vegas, 
Nevada: 

Nevada Parent Teacher Association (NPTA) strongly supports A.B. 243.  
Decades of research demonstrate the vital importance of parental involvement 
as the major predictor of student academic success and success in life.  This 
makes the bill the right thing to do.  Assembly Bill 243 also provides results to 
employers at a relatively low cost, minimal impact benefit for employees, and a 
low cost, high yield investment in its future workforce.  That makes this bill the 
smart thing to do.  The fact is, the future of Nevada depends on better 
educated students and a better educated workforce.  We are all vested in public 
education for every child, every family, every taxpayer, and every business.  
 
Mary Jo Parise-Malloy, President, Nevadans for Quality Education, Las Vegas, 

Nevada: 
We absolutely support this piece of legislation.  We think it makes sense, and 
we think it is fair.  We strongly believe, if we have a great quality teacher in the 
classroom and we have involved parents at home, we have the perfect mix for 
student success.  We look forward to seeing the amendment, but I am sure 
we will have no problems.  
 
D’Lisa Crain, Parent Involvement Coordinator, Washoe County School District, 

Reno, Nevada: 
I think this bill would most help parents who have the most difficult time getting 
to school.  This bill is reaching out to parents who work hourly jobs and who do 
not have flexible schedules; those are the parents we need to build relationships 
with the most, we need to see face-to-face, and who feel vulnerable in the 
workplace and do not feel comfortable asking for time off. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
You bring up a very good point.  I think everyone is a little vulnerable right now 
in their employment. 
 
Michele Paul, Teacher, Washoe County School District, Reno, Nevada: 
As a school teacher I see how important it is for the parents to be involved and 
have an understanding of what we are doing in the classroom.  The more parent 
involvement we have, and the higher the level of communication, the better the 
students do.  They know that if they misbehave their parents will be called and 
there will be a follow-up.  They know that if they are doing something really 
terrific I will also call their parents and there will be a follow-up.  There is even 
more of an impact when those parents come into the classroom and are there to 
help their children learn.  I have been a teacher for 19 years in Nevada, and one 
of the greatest pleasures I have ever had is parents being involved in not only 
their children’s education, but having an impact on all the children.  I am 
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completely in support of this bill, I feel like it is one of the few things that has 
such a low cost but will have such a great impact on everyone in the 
community.  
 
Craig Foster, Private Citizen, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
As active parents, my wife and I know that the administration at each school 
our children attend is there to support our child.  The administration also knows 
that we care about the academic and extracurricular education being provided.  
It becomes a team investing in our child’s future.  As our children get older, our 
direct involvement shifts from the classroom towards extracurricular activities.  
However, through parents’ league, email, conferences, and being at the events, 
the staff knows our children and the children that are attached to our family.  
This knowledge has proven to be invaluable as we receive communications and 
input about our children.  Also, our children know that we have a direct link to 
their teachers which causes better performance there.  The Estes McDaniel 
Elementary staff allows our PTA to run the Watchdogs program.  This program 
puts a male role model in a classroom setting every day.  Using this as an 
example, I get to know and have a relationship with all the teachers, the nurses, 
the janitor, and the lunch ladies.  Through these relationships, we know that our 
children are held to the higher standard that we exemplify in our time and 
conversations at the school.  We know that we are on a good team, 
our children know they are on a good team, and the teachers know that they 
have authority and support behind them.   
 
The reason I spend time at the schools is because I place a priority on the value 
that this brings to our family—from knowing who my children hang out with, to 
my children achieving more in school and wanting to be there because it is a 
common location and experience that our whole family enjoys.  This time is not 
free.  It is important that parents take the time, whether paid or not, to be 
involved and encourage the growth and synergy of their children.  I believe that 
as good citizens of this great country and state, our companies should provide 
parents with the opportunity to be involved. 
 
Francisco Aguilar, Chief Policy Officer and Associate General Counsel,  

The Andre Agassi Charitable Foundation, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
As a governing board member of Agassi Preparatory, I think this bill will 
compliment the unique attribute we have with our parents.  When the parents 
enroll their student at Agassi Preparatory, they are required to sign a 
student-teacher-parent contract which requires parent involvement with many 
aspects of our school, from attending different functions to attending governing 
board meetings.  This will really help with some of the issues we have faced in 
the past with some of the parents wanting to get involved in the school.  More 
importantly, the board has decided to add a parent member to the governing 
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board, giving the parent more say in the governing of our school and its 
regulations.  We appreciate the effort and support the bill. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Thank you.  It is a great idea to put a parent on the board.  
 
Rusty McAllister, President, Professional Fire Fighters of Nevada, Las Vegas, 

Nevada: 
We would like to support A.B. 243.  From the firefighter’s standpoint, there are 
a couple of things we could address about our circumstances.  As many of you 
know, we work 24-hour shifts and have three platoons.  There is one platoon 
always on duty and they are required to be there for the 24 hours.  I spend one 
third of my life at the fire station.  Whenever I am there, I am not allowed to 
leave.  We bid on vacation for the upcoming year, a year in advance.  Once that 
vacation roster is full, there are only a certain number of allotted slots available, 
and once those are full, there is no time off available.  So, there is no way for 
me to be able to do that.  I know that some of the local governments have 
expressed concerns, especially with firefighters, that it would generate overtime 
if they let somebody off.  But it says it has to be mutually agreed upon, so they 
have the ability to turn it down.  That may only apply to a couple of fire 
departments in the state, but the rest would certainly be able to benefit from 
this.  It would allow firefighters to become more involved in their children’s 
education and activities.  From this standpoint, we certainly support A.B. 243.  
 
Bart Mangino, Carson City, Nevada, Legislative Representative, Clark County 

School District, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
We are in support of A.B. 243.  The language in the bill expands the 
opportunities for parents to participate in their child’s education.  As a building 
administrator, there is nothing more important than expanding opportunities for 
our parents to participate in their child’s education, so we are in full support of 
this bill. 
 
Julie Whitacre, representing Nevada State Education Association, Las Vegas, 

Nevada: 
I am also here in support of A.B. 243 for all the reasons stated by previous 
speakers.  
 
David F. Kallas, Detective, Director of Governmental Affairs, Las Vegas Police 

Protective Association, Metro Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada: 
I would like to speak about this bill from a different perspective; our officers are 
the ones who control the streets every day.  Children do not have as much 
parent involvement because their parents are working, especially in these 
economic times.  It is a burden on the parents to make ends meet financially 
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and still have time for their children.  We see the consequences of the lack of 
parental involvement.  Certainly, we believe it is beneficial that parents are 
involved and given the opportunity, through their work, to participate in their 
children’s education.  On behalf of our officers, and the children who do not 
have the attention they deserve from their parents, we ask that you support this 
legislation. 
 
Sam McMullen, representing Las Vegas Chamber of Commerce, Las Vegas, 

Nevada: 
This bill has an excellent purpose, which is to increase parental involvement in 
the lives and the academic achievement of children.  In that spirit, we basically 
want to support A.B. 243 and work through the practicalities that are presented 
by this.  We do appreciate all the sponsors for their concern and sensitivity to 
some of the issues we have raised.  We were involved in the negotiation of this 
bill, and we want it to be implemented with facility and sensitivity to both sides.   
 
Chair Parnell: 
Just to clarify, you are working with Assemblywoman Mastroluca on amending 
language? 
 
Sam McMullen: 
That is correct.  I will not go through the list of issues; we will go through that 
during the work session. 
 
Julianna Ormsby, representing, Nevada Women’s Lobby, Reno, Nevada;  

League of Women Voters, Carson City, Nevada: 
Both the Nevada Women’s Lobby and the League of Women Voters fully 
support A.B. 243, and we thank Assemblywoman Mastroluca for bringing it 
forward.  Thank you for your time.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
Is there anyone else who wishes to testify in support of A.B. 243?  Do we have 
anyone here to oppose A.B. 243?  Is there anyone neutral? 
 
Michael Tanchek, Labor Commissioner, Office of Labor Commissioner, 

Department of Business and Industry:  
It appears that this bill has some implications for Nevada labor law and there are 
provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 607.160, “Labor Commissioner 
shall enforce all labor laws of the State of Nevada…enforcement of which is not 
specifically and exclusively vested in any other officer, board or commission.”  
I am specifically confused about the implications A.B. 243 has for the Labor 
Commissioner.  I would like to address section 5, subsection 3, which is the 
sanctions provision of this bill.  It does provide for a civil action; it says that 
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“A person who is discharged from employment or who is demoted, suspended 
or otherwise discriminated against in violation of subsection 1 may commence a 
civil action against his employer within one year….”  Some of the things they 
can obtain are wages and benefits that are lost.  Is that the specific, exclusive, 
and sole remedy under this bill?  Or is this another section where, if there are 
problems that come up, the employees in question can come to me for a 
remedy?  That is a hot topic in some of the other Committees right now in 
terms of whether I am the sole and exclusive remedy in these types of 
complaints.  I am hoping for some clarification as we go forward. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Have you contacted Assemblywoman Mastroluca and tried to work with her on 
this language? 
 
Michael Tanchek: 
I have not had a chance to talk to Assemblywoman Mastroluca yet, since I just 
saw it this morning.  However, I will contact her regarding this. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca, would you like to respond to his concerns? 
 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca: 
Actually, those provisions have been in the law since 1989.  That was the 
original consequence of an employer violating this law in 1989, when it was 
passed.  That is the origin of that.  In speaking with Mr. McMullen, I am more 
than willing to sit down and have a conversation with you about moving this 
over to your purview, versus, or in addition to, doing it this way through a 
misdemeanor.   
 
I appreciate everyone that has come forward to ask questions and to be willing 
to work with me on the bill.  To reiterate what I said in my opening comments, 
I believe this is an opportunity for us to be proactive about education and I am 
excited it is being so well received.  I am looking forward to seeing how it all 
works out.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
I am sure Ms. Roberts will look into the Labor Commissioner’s questions.  I will 
close the hearing on A.B. 243, and I will open the hearing on Assembly Bill 319, 
which is presented by Assemblyman Segerblom.  
 
Assembly Bill 319:  Makes various changes relating to school employees. 

(BDR 34-50) 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB319.pdf�


Assembly Committee on Education 
March 23, 2009 
Page 18 
 

 

Assemblyman Tick Segerblom, Clark County Assembly District No. 9: 
You should have in front of you my testimony (Exhibit L) and a summary of the 
changes this bill makes from Assembly Bill No. 459 of the 74th Session  
(Exhibit M).  This bill is a reflection of my knowledge of what is called the Police 
Officer’s Bill of Rights, which is in statute and sets forth a certain minimum due 
process standard which police officers have.  It seems to me that we, as the 
State Legislature, should provide the same type of rights to teachers who are 
the number one public employees that we regulate.  I had this bill drafted two 
years ago and it passed this Committee and the State Assembly unanimously, 
yet the Senate had problems with this bill.  I did not want to give up, so I have 
been working with the Teachers Union to take out some of the provisions that 
were most objectionable last time, particularly with respect to the teacher’s 
ability to request an investigation of their own administrators.  That is no longer 
in the bill.  This bill is a very simple bill that requires that teachers be given 
notice before they are brought in and questioned about allegations.  As you 
know, teachers receive complaints from all kinds of angles and A.B. 319 gives 
them an opportunity to know what they are responding to before they respond.  
I would hope that the Committee would look at this bill favorably again.  I have 
two witnesses to testify in support of the bill and I will be happy to answer any 
questions. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Can you explain this bill section by section to clarify? 
 
Assemblyman Segerblom: 
Last time, this bill was referred to as the Teacher’s Bill of Rights and now it 
evolved into the Teacher’s Retention Bill.  As you know, in Nevada we have a 
huge problem in hiring enough teachers.  It turns out the biggest problem is not 
in hiring the teachers; it is that such a large number of teachers leave.  One of 
the questions we have is:  why do they leave?  I believe one of the solutions is 
to make teachers feel like they are more protected.  It is a much different 
environment in southern Nevada than northern Nevada.  Assembly Bill 319 no 
longer only covers teachers; it covers principals and other employees that work 
at schools because they are all involved with parents, students, and incidents 
that lead to these inquiries.  In section 7, it discusses if someone is accused of 
something, they are entitled to notice of what they are accused of 48 hours 
before they meet with an administrator to discuss that issue.  Before they are 
brought into the meeting, they are entitled to know when the meeting is going 
to take place, the purpose, and details of the allegation.  Many times, the 
teacher is not informed of the details of the allegation made against him and 
therefore is not able to prepare to defend himself.  We are asking that 
the districts provide that type of information 48 hours before the employee is 
called in.   
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It also provides that notice of the meeting goes both to the employee and to the 
union involved, if there is a union, so that the employee and the union have 
the ability to work together if necessary.  This provision was not included 
before.  Section 8 provides that if an employee will be terminated, and there are 
witnesses involved, that the district interviews all those witnesses.  If an 
employee is terminated, and is later reinstated, he is entitled to back pay for the 
time period that he was out.  Oftentimes, if you go to arbitration and win, 
the arbitrator will only grant the employee one week of back pay even if he had 
been out of work for two years.  This is included particularly because teachers 
have a very difficult time getting a job during the interim.  There are not very 
many positions, outside of the school district, for a licensed teacher.  Obviously, 
if there is some type of a disciplinary termination or suspension, it is difficult to 
get a job as a teacher.  So, A.B. 319 ensures that the employee will receive full 
back pay.  
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
Section 8 states:  “The district shall ensure that each person identified on the 
list is interviewed in full before the school employee may be suspended.”  I am 
not sure what “in full” means, and I am not sure that we have power to find all 
of those people on that list.  If we shall ensure that each person is identified on 
the list, and they are deceased or otherwise moved, I think that language is 
problematic. 
 
Assemblyman Segerblom: 
Obviously, these are all subject to some type of reasonableness.  If the person 
is dead, we are clearly not going to be able to contact them.  If you listed the 
person on the list, the district would presumably make reasonable efforts to 
interview them.  Often what happens is the district will make its own decision 
whether they interview the witnesses or not.  We are just asking that these 
professional employees be given the right to know that the body which was 
getting ready to take away their license went out and did a full investigation of 
the accusation made against the employee.  That happens routinely with 
doctors and lawyers; it does not happen with teachers. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
What I am hearing from my colleague is that he is reasonable and wants to 
amend this in some way to make it reasonable. 
 
Assemblyman Segerblom: 
Having dealt with the school district, I do not think you have to worry about 
them bending the rules in favor of themselves.  Nevertheless, if we can make 
the language amenable to you, I would be happy to work on it. 
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Chair Parnell: 
I remember section 8 causing some difficulty for everyone last time because 
there were people who did not show respect and I am not going to allow that 
again.  I do not want to hear specific names, schools, or individual situations; 
we are here to talk to the merits of A.B. 319.  Are there any other questions for 
Mr. Segerblom? 
 
Assemblyman McArthur: 
You stated that this bill basically serves to help out our teachers.  In sections 
2 through 10 inclusive, it states this does not apply to any school employee 
who is governed by collective bargaining.  Are teachers not covered under 
collective bargaining?  I am specifically looking at section 6, line 19.  
 
Assemblyman Segerblom: 
To the extent that any conflict between the provision of the agreement and the 
provisions of sections 2 through 10; if there is a conflict between the contract 
and this law, the contract applies.  This is stated in lines 20-23. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
It clarifies that if you read lines 22-23. 
 
Assemblyman McArthur: 
Thank you. 
 
Assemblyman Segerblom: 
That was an issue that came up last time because there were assertions that 
our contracts are stronger than this, and if they are stronger than this, it is not 
an issue.  To the extent that the contract says you have to meet, and this law 
says you have to meet and give notice, then I believe the notice would be 
required. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Are there any additional questions at this time? 
 
Assemblyman Segerblom: 
There are two individuals that I have asked to testify; the first is Julie Whitacre 
from the Nevada State Education Association (NSEA) and the second is 
David F. Kallas from the Police Protective Association, Metro, Inc.  
 
Julie Whitacre, representing Nevada State Education Association, Las Vegas, 

Nevada: 
I am here on behalf of the Nevada State Education Association (NSEA) which is 
in favor of A.B. 319.  Mr. Segerblom was exactly right in saying recruiting and 
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retaining teachers in Nevada, especially in Clark County, is a very serious 
problem.  One of the reasons teachers continue to leave the profession 
is because of the working conditions at their schools.  This bill would help 
teachers and other educators feel more protected and help them when feeling 
intimidation from their supervisors.  It treats them like professionals, and it adds 
transparency while due process is being pursued.  For those reasons, we are in 
support of A.B. 319. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Can you please simply summarize how you read this bill to be? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
It gives educators notice first if they are going to be called into their 
supervisor’s office for disciplinary purposes.  It offers them at least 48 hours 
notice, and it also lets them know who their accuser is.  It also gives them 
opportunity to line up any witnesses that they think may have relevant 
information for what they are being accused of.  It also allows licensed and 
unlicensed professionals the opportunity to receive any back pay they may have 
been owed while they were on suspension, if they are found not guilty and their 
job is reinstated.  Right now, they are required to mitigate their damages, which 
is very difficult when they have been suspended without pay.  Currently, the 
districts require the employees to prove that they have tried to find work when 
they were suspended from the worksite.  When they do not know when 
their job may or may not be reinstated, it is difficult to find new employment.  It 
is difficult to go out and find new work when they ask why you are looking for 
work and you are required to disclose your indefinite suspension from a school 
district and not knowing when or if your job will be reinstated.  It also provides 
that a teacher may not be transferred to another school or worksite as a 
disciplinary purpose.  Those are the highlights of A.B. 319. 
 
Assemblyman Munford: 
I do agree with you that some administrators in schools have a way of trying to 
unjustifiably fire or transfer teachers because of philosophical differences or if 
the teacher does not fit their type.  The administrator can make a teacher feel 
isolated and make them feel that they have no value, and the teacher is unsure 
why he is being singled out.  That takes away a lot of morale and enthusiasm.  
The students pay the price for this mistreatment of teachers by administrators.  
In that way, this bill has some merit. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
Regarding section 11, what discipline is there?  It almost seems to me that a 
teacher is either fired or no action is taken.  There has to be something between 
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less than 30 days of temporary requirements for work and termination.  How 
does disciplinary action work? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
It varies from school district to school district, and I do not want to speak on 
behalf of the entire state. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
For example, let us discuss Clark County. 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
Section 11 is not necessarily speaking to a transfer or firing, there are a number 
of different things that can happen in between.  We just want to clarify that a 
transfer cannot be used as discipline; there are other ways to discipline besides 
being fired. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
Can the teacher request a transfer? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
Yes, absolutely. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
Sometimes the chemistry between teacher and principal does not work.  As I 
see this, the teacher can request a transfer, but the principal cannot.  Is that 
true? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
Yes.  However, to clarify, the principal cannot request a transfer of a teacher for 
disciplinary purposes.  
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
So, if the principal requests a transfer of the teacher, it is because they do not 
get along? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
It would depend on each individual instance; it may or it may not.  Usually, a 
principal does not request a transfer of a teacher for anything but disciplinary 
purposes. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
A teacher can request a transfer, but a principal cannot request a transfer; this 
seems unequal to me. 
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Chair Parnell: 
Are there any additional questions? 
 
Assemblyman Munford: 
Regarding Assemblyman Hardy’s question about transfers—principals 
sometimes attempt to make a teacher transfer.  They can harass them and 
make it unpleasant for a teacher to work there.  The next step would be to fire 
a teacher or put him on probation, so a teacher decides to apply for a transfer 
because of the hostile relationship with an administrator. 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
One of the things we do not like to talk about is that intimidation does exist in 
school sites between educators and their supervisors.  This bill is trying to make 
the educator feel safe from intimidation in the environment in which they are 
working. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
I am concerned that the intimidation will be such that either the teachers abide 
by the principal’s way or they will be fired, as opposed to any recourse in 
between that would make sense.  I worry that there will not be options. 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
I see this bill as helping because it sheds more light on the process; it makes 
sure that the union gets involved from the very beginning, instead of further 
down the line.  It also makes sure that the witnesses are being heard.  It puts 
more transparency in the process and moves things along more quickly and 
efficiently. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
I have a question regarding the notice; currently do teachers recognize that they 
can take someone into a meeting with an administrator? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
Every member who belongs to the union is told they are able to take somebody 
into the meeting with them.  However, there is the intimidation factor, which 
causes an employee to feel insecure about taking someone in with them.  
Oftentimes, he will be called into his supervisor’s office for another purpose and 
then the topic will switch to something that is disciplinary.  At that point, since 
he feels intimidated, he does not feel comfortable stopping the meeting to bring 
another person in.  This bill would make sure that if an employee wants 
someone else to be present in the meeting, that person will be there from the 
start. 
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Chair Parnell: 
So, currently we have no 48-hour notice? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
It will differ from district to district, depending on the contract.  Some contracts 
have a one-day notice, and other contracts, especially for our support 
staffs, have no notice at all. 
 
Assemblyman Stewart: 
I am concerned about the broad language in section 10.  Who is going to 
determine if the statement was intended to convince the employee?  Is that up 
to the employee to determine whether the principal or administrator made some 
statement that he felt waived his rights?  I think that is a little broad.  Who is 
going to set the penalties in section 10, subsection 2? 
 
Julie Whitacre: 
It would be the Board of Trustees of each school district.  I think they would 
clarify what that language would be, as well as what the violations would be. 
 
David F. Kallas, Detective, Director of Governmental Affairs, Las Vegas Police 

Protective Association, Metro Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada: 
Fortunately, the Legislature saw the need to implement legislation that would 
provide law enforcement some protection during the course of internal 
investigations.  This was not necessarily because of concerns of intimidation by 
administrators, but because the most important thing any of us in public service 
can have is our credibility and our integrity.  When somebody in the general 
public questions your actions, it brings your creditability, integrity, and ethics 
into question.  Similarly, when a teacher is brought into question, regardless of 
the outcome of that particular investigation, there will be others in the field who 
will always doubt that teacher.  I believe that is why, in law enforcement, we 
initially implemented procedures and processes so that the officers could feel 
somewhat protected when discussing issues.  In our public employment, 
we want to provide our administrators with information when there is improper 
behavior by an employee.  What we found is the innocent attempts by the 
employees and employers to resolve issues in an informal matter create more 
problems than having a formal process.  This is because the employee may try 
to explain to his supervisor what may have occurred, yet that may not appease 
the complainant, who then takes it to an even more formal process.  The 
employee is then interviewed and provided certain protection in regards to 
notification, and as is outlined in A.B. 319, a summary of the alleged 
misconduct.  The employee is also entitled to have a representative present and 
a certain time frame in which he must be noticed when and where the interview 
will take place.   
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All these measures have taken place over the years because we have had 
situations where people have attempted to, in informal settings, resolve issues 
about accusations made by a citizen.  Yet, those issues are not always resolved 
and, if they are, they are not resolved in the best manner which affects the 
employee.  Therefore, we have to implement legislation that outlines protection 
for both the employee and employer.  Every year I have been at the Legislature, 
there has been an amendment proposed to the current Police Officer’s Bill of 
Rights under Chapter 289 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS).  As situations 
occur between the employer and the employee, we realize that everything we 
have attempted to cover does not necessarily get covered.  When an incident 
occurs, we need to address it.  I believe what Assemblyman Segerblom has 
done with this worthy piece of legislation, which I testified in support of in 
2007, has attempted to begin the process to protect the employees and 
employers in the school district.  This bill helps employers who do not want to 
be accused of intimidation or anything else in regard to resolving issues.   
 
I believe A.B. 319 provides a basic framework, similar to the provisions we have 
under NRS Chapter 289, to implement that protection.  Once a teacher’s 
credibility is brought into question, depending on the severity of an allegation, 
the credibility and effectiveness of that teacher or police officer is impacted.  
That is not in the best interest of the community, students, and the general 
public.  Implementing something like A.B. 319, in its current context or with 
provisions, could be a start in the right direction.  I believe it is worthy of 
legislation, and I believe it is worthy of this Committee supporting it.  I would be 
happy to answer any questions.  
 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca: 
In NRS Chapter 289, does it allow the accused to know the names of all of the 
accusers? 
 
David F. Kallas: 
No it does not, until adjudication has been rendered in regards to the allegation.  
If adjudication has been rendered, then the individual employee has the right to 
review the entire file, at which time they will be able to identify the accuser. 
 
Juanita Simpson, Teacher, Clark County School District, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
I am in support of A.B. 319 and would like to thank Assemblyman Segerblom 
and the other legislators involved for taking the time to realize and understand 
that teachers need to have a bill of rights.  I have witnessed many of the 
things that Julie Whitacre has commented on at schools I have taught in and 
been very active in.  I think this bill adds transparency, fairness, and supports 
teachers.  Assemblywoman Parnell, I would like to address some of your 
concerns.  I would like to let you know that in an educational setting, a principal 
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has the primary authority.  Many things happen pertaining to a teacher’s rights 
and with teacher/administrator disagreements that are not related to an 
educational item and are not based on the teacher’s performance or the 
teacher/student relationship.  Teachers are forced to transfer by their 
administrator due to these disagreements.  There is no support for teachers, and 
I believe A.B. 319  brings this to light.  On the other hand, good administrators 
raise the bar for teachers they are having difficulties with; they do not try to 
create unnecessary occurrences in an educational setting.  I have been fortunate 
enough to work with very positive administrators who try to raise the bar.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
Those of you who wish to speak in opposition of A.B. 319 may come forward. 
 
Anne Loring, representing Washoe County School District, Reno, Nevada: 
We are here to respectfully oppose A.B. 319.  We share the interest in 
maintaining a mutually respectful and professional relationship among the 
educators who care for our children.  Procedures to address complaints and 
grievances are already in place to protect our employees from unfair 
and unwarranted treatment in NRS Chapter 391, the collective bargaining 
agreements that contain “just cause” requirements.  We know that this 
Committee is particularly aware of the very serious problems our districts are all 
facing in the current economic crisis.  At a time of having to dramatically reduce 
costs, we believe that A.B. 319 will add significant demands on staff’s time and 
it will also add substantial administrative costs to our districts.  In the face of 
our critical budget issues, we do not feel that A.B. 319 is appropriate right now. 
 
Bart Mangino, Carson City, Nevada, Legislative Representative, Clark County 

School District, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
I would like to reinforce the importance our district places on retaining 
employees and establishing a positive environment.  I would like to share two 
initiatives undertaken by our district designed to retain teachers and enhance 
school climate.   
 
(1) The handout I provided you (Exhibit N) contains the most recent data from 
our district’s exit survey.  Consider the results of the exit survey up to March 
19, indicating why teachers leave our district.  Respondents can fill in the 
blanks with anything they desire and their answers are then categorized into 
the 10 categories that you see before you in Exhibit N entitled  
Licensed Personnel Separation Report.  The “Dissatisfied with District” category 
includes, in addition to salary, complaints that the school or district 
administration is the cause for separation.  Since the 2003/2004 school year, 
7,547 licensed personnel have completed the survey.  Of that number, 70 have 
selected the dissatisfaction with the district as a reason for leaving.  While some 
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dissatisfied employees may not have given a reason, the fact is that less than 
one percent should not give rise to the need for immediate legislative remedy.   
 
(2) Another initiative our district took was launched in January 2006.  It is a 
Teaching and Learning Conditions Survey which launches a measure to facilitate 
the resources, empowerment, leadership, and professional development.  The 
survey was then followed by the creation of the Teaching and  
Learning Conditions team.  This team, beginning in August 2006, was designed 
to assist schools in addressing school climate change.  This team received 
training in interest-based problem solving from the Federal Mediation and  
Conciliation Services (FMCS).  Since its inception, the Teaching and Learning 
Conditions team has provided over 7,000 hours of training, professional 
development courses, staff development training, and conference and workshop 
presentations.  They facilitate conversations that allow groups to discuss 
questions that matter.  Each year, a survey is developed by the Center for 
Teaching Quality (CTQ) and is administered in our schools.  The results are 
completed by the CTQ and returned to the district and individual school sites.  
Teacher-led teams are then able to work with the school’s personnel in 
addressing areas identified within that survey.  The importance of this is that 
this initiative helps build bridges of trust between administration and staff within 
the school.  That is critical to the ongoing operation of the school. 
   
In closing, while we do not support A.B. 319, we recognize that moral and fair 
treatment is important.  Concerns of employees, at every level, should be heard 
and addressed.  In addition to contractual remedies for problems, all schools 
have structures designed to facilitate collaboration between employees and the 
administration to find solutions to problems.  As a result, a positive working 
environment is built.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
Last session when we heard this bill, one of the things on which I had agreed 
with Clark County was to have an office of teacher advocacy.  Can you tell me 
if there was ever one created?  If not, why not?  Would that still be an issue 
that we could move forward on?  I would just like some input on that particular 
part. 
 
Bart Mangino: 
Not being privy to that conversation, I would direct that question to other 
Clark County School District personnel. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Since Joyce Haldeman was a part of that conversation, could you please come 
forward and address that? 
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Joyce Haldeman, Assistant Superintendent for Community and Government 
Relations, Clark County School District, Las Vegas: 

The office of teacher advocacy was discussed; however, after session we had 
to start making budget cuts and reduction.  The potential office of teacher 
advocacy was the victim of the unfortunate money problems we are dealing 
with.  It is something we have discussed, but as we are starting to let people go 
and not filling positions, it is not something we are working on creating. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
I was looking at the different sections in the Licensed Personnel Separation 
Report (Exhibit N) and the issue of noticing does not have any fiscal impact, 
correct? 
 
Bart Mangino: 
No it does not. 
 
Bill Hoffman, General Counsel, Clark County School District, Las Vegas, 

Nevada: 
I appreciate the opportunity to speak here today.  I also teach Nevada school 
law at both the undergraduate and graduate level and have done so for 
10 years, so I am interested in this issue.  I am mindful of the extensive 
background in education this Committee has, and I appreciate the concern as 
well as the understanding of the context that this bill falls in.  I want to address 
from a legal point of view, sections 7, 8, and 11.  I also want to note that the 
Clark County School District opposes this entire bill.  
 
First of all, as you know, existing law sets forth the requirements that 
the district and the employee groups negotiate regarding the terms and 
conditions of employment.  In the handout (Exhibit O), on pages 1 and 2, it 
shows the mandatory subjects of bargaining that the statute requires the union 
and the management of the district negotiate about.  All of the topics that are 
within A.B. 319 are also contained within the mandatory bargaining section.  In 
fact, all of the bargaining units, at least in Clark County, have risen to the 
occasion and have negotiated various conditions of employment to match 
the requirements and the obligations that they have under NRS 288.150.  
Unless you believe that the unions have been unable to represent its employees 
well in this process, this bill is unnecessary.  I can tell you that in the 14 years 
I have been lead counsel for the Clark County School District, none of the issues 
that are in A.B. 319 that have been brought to the table by the unions have 
been a sticking point.  We have always been able to resolve the contracts.  This 
is a surprise to me to hear that there is some deficiency in the negotiating 
capability of these unions.  I do not think there is; I think they do a great job of 
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representing their educators.  They can accomplish what they want to 
accomplish by doing so under the collective bargaining. 
  
I will speak first to section 7 of the bill.  Existing law requires that when an 
employee believes that a meeting with a supervisor may result in discipline, then 
they have the right to a formal notice and to union representation.  That rule is 
based upon well-established federal law.  It is actually a United States  
Supreme Court case that is over two decades old.  I give you an extract from 
that on page 6 (Exhibit O) so you can see that existing law is the way that the 
Clark County School District operates with its employees, judging by the articles 
on page 4 and 5.  So, we have had a well-established procedure for some time.  
When the employee believes they are going to be disciplined, then they have the 
right to union representation.  As it stands right now, A.B. 319 interferes with 
that case law.  Section 7 requires that any meeting which involves the conduct, 
performance, employment status, discipline, or transfer of a school employee 
requires a 48-hour notice and rights to union representation.  I would submit 
that conduct, performance, employment status, discipline, or transfer is so 
broad that virtually all interchanges between employees and administrators, 
except social meetings, would fall within these rules.   
 
There are major problems that arise from that.   
 
The bill does not distinguish between good and bad performances; it applies to 
run-of-the-mill discussions that an employer would have with an employee.  For 
example, just giving simple instruction in a meeting that involves the 
performance of the employee would require 48-hours notice and providing 
representation in order to have that meeting under A.B. 319.   
 
This requirement, in the context of a parent/teacher meeting or an Individualized 
Educational Plan (IEP) meeting, where an administrator is present, if a parent 
raises the issue of a teacher’s performance, then the meeting would require 
union representation and a 48-hour notice.  That would obviously violate the 
privacy rights of the parents who would be sitting in the meeting with the union 
representative. 
 
The effectiveness of teacher evaluations would be undermined.  Principals can 
sit in the back of the classroom and observe the performance of their teacher 
and give feedback to that teacher.  Under A.B. 319 this would not be allowed 
because 48-hour notice would be required and a union representative would 
have to be present. 
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I believe that the union cannot attend all of the alleged meetings we are talking 
about.  Clark County School district has 30,000 employees and 350 schools. If 
each of those administrators had a meeting with a  teacher every day under this 
definition, where are the union  representatives going to come from?  There 
simply are not enough.  Practically speaking, it highlights the problem of this 
law. 
 
There is also a different problem in section 7.  Existing law and agreement is 
that the notice the employee receives must place the employee on notice of the 
issue that will be addressed.  This law would require the administrator to name 
all of the accusers, which could lead to the intimidation of those students.  
It also requires that a detailed explanation be provided as to what the case 
is about.  All the details would be provided to the employee, which would allow 
the employee to contrive a false response to the allegation since he was already 
given a detailed explanation of the charges.  I cannot imagine any police 
investigator ever being required, in the course of an investigation, to identify all 
of the accusers and all of the evidence in a detailed fashion to the person they 
are trying to get information from.  The police would not have to do that, why 
are we requiring the administrators to do that?  The burden on the efficiency of 
school administration would be significant.  
 
Section 8 allows the employee to require the district to interview in full an 
unlimited number of witnesses for him and to prevent his discipline until that is 
done.  Here is an example situation:  A teacher has slapped a child and the 
administrator is getting ready to discipline that teacher.  The teacher then wants 
the administrator to interview all of the teachers in several schools to find out if 
they have ever lost their temper and slapped a child.  
 
In my experience, this kind of law which would allow the teacher or employee 
to require the school district to go and interview an unlimited number of people 
is not good policy.  The union representative who represents that individual is 
fully capable of interviewing who he needs to interview in order to defend the 
teacher.  The case I mentioned about a student injury is an example of real 
cases that we face.  The interview process is important, but it should be done 
by the representative, not by the school district.  Section 8 creates a 
requirement that should not be met.  
 
Finally, in section 11, existing law prevents disciplinary transfers, and I have 
provided you with a handout addressing that (Exhibit O).  That has been in the 
law for some time in NRS 288.150.  It is already there, we have already 
negotiated that, and it is no longer a problem.  Involuntary transfers are based 
upon licensure and seniority; it is in the contract, and we do not have any 
problem with that.  This law, however, says that involuntary reassignment of a 
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licensed employee must be based upon licensure and seniority.  For instance, an 
elementary administrator may want a third grade teacher to teach second grade 
because he believes the teacher would be the best person for that.  Under this 
bill, if the teacher was the senior teacher, he would be able to turn down that 
assignment.  The administrator, who would be trying to match skill with 
requirements, would not be able to do that under this bill, he would have to do 
it based upon seniority.  That is not a good way to do business.  If the principal 
is going to be held responsible for the performance of the school, you should 
give him the ability to make assignments of his personnel at the school.   
 
Chair Parnell: 
I would just like to clarify page 4, section 11, subsection 1: “an involuntary 
transfer or reassignment of a licensed employee must be based upon licensure 
and seniority and may not be made as a form of discipline.”  So if there is a 
teacher who is qualified to teach a second grade class and the administrator 
asks that person to consider taking that class, it would not be considered a form 
of discipline. 
 
Bill Hoffman: 
It is not a form of discipline.  Assembly Bill 319 states that an 
involuntary reassignment of a licensed employee must be based upon 
licensure and seniority.  Section 11 is outside of the disciplinary process.  
Sections 2 through 10 deal with the disciplinary process, section 11 is in the 
assignment category.  I could go on but I would appreciate any questions you 
may have.  The Clark County School District clearly opposes A.B. 319. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Are there any questions for Mr. Hoffman?  Thank you.  Is there anyone else 
wishing to testify in opposition to A.B. 319?  
 
Mark Coleman, Deputy Director, Clark County Association of School 

Administrators and Professional-technical Employees, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
The testimony by Mr. Mangino and Mr. Hoffman address our concerns.  We do 
not support A.B. 319 as written.  If you have any questions I will be glad to 
answer them. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Are there any questions?  Thank you.  Is there anyone neutral on A.B. 319?  
With that, Mr. Segerblom, would you like to make any closing comments on 
A.B. 319? 
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Assemblyman Segerblom: 
In closing, this bill was before you two years ago and it has been considerably 
reduced in scope.  It is a very basic, fundamental building block that the police 
officers already have.  We are just trying to establish security among teachers 
and let them know that they are protected.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
With that, I will close the hearing on A.B. 319.  I will now open the hearing on 
Assembly Bill 348, which is presented by Assemblyman Munford. 
 
Assembly Bill 348:  Requires public schools to post a notice of certain 

information concerning educational programs and services available within 
the school district. (BDR 34-621) 

 
Assemblyman Harvey Munford, Clark County Assembly District No. 6: 
I am here to introduce Assembly Bill 348 to the Committee.  This legislation 
addresses the gap in the school/parent communication that we must attend to.  
In many families, it is simply expected that some children will go to college and 
the parents are very aware of the college preparatory program.  They know 
about honors, advanced placement, and Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) 
programs that are available to their children and understand how valuable they 
are.  They know about the learning disabilities and are aware of the programs 
that exist to help students succeed.  However, in other families, such 
expectations and knowledge do not exist.  Parents who have never attended 
college do not know about the special classes that could boost their child’s 
chance at getting a higher education.  In low-income families, the day-to-day 
financial struggle can be so overwhelming that researching a child’s course 
schedule seems impossible.  The result is that many bright students from 
disadvantaged families fall between the cracks. 
 
I would like to explain what A.B. 348 would require and why I believe these 
additions to Nevada law are necessary.  The bill would require the Board of 
Trustees of each school district to prepare a written notice identifying the 
following: advanced placement courses, honors courses, international 
baccalaureate courses, special education services, and any other educational 
programs that are available to help advance the education of students enrolled 
in the districts.  This list would also be required to specify where those courses 
are available in the school district, identify the grade levels for which they are 
available, and these courses should be posted on the Internet websites 
maintained by the school districts themselves.  In addition, A.B. 348 will require 
each public school to post the list in a conspicuous place and make sure that 
the list is provided to the parents and legal guardians of the students enrolled 
at the beginning of each school year.  Upon a student’s enrollment at a school, 
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this should be applicable.  I would also like to propose an amendment to 
A.B. 348 that would make it less onerous for public schools to comply 
(Exhibit P).  The amendment will clarify that the list in the school need consist 
only of the courses and programs available at that particular school.   
 
So, why is this bill important?  Research shows that students who complete 
honors and advanced placement courses are better prepared for college.  
Teachers participating in these courses tend to develop better content and 
teaching skills.  Also, honors and advanced placement programs can improve 
the overall curriculum of a school by creating a need for rigorous preparatory 
courses.  According to the American Federation of Teachers, recent experience 
shows that access to advanced placement courses in high school benefit 
students by exposing them to challenging curriculum that makes them familiar 
with the rigors of college level coursework and exams.  Even if a student does 
not pass the advanced placement exam, simply participating in the course is 
beneficial.  Finally, information about the availability of specialized courses and 
programs in each school should be easy to find.  Information required by 
A.B. 348 would help teachers reach out to parents of students who need more 
help and encouragement to take advantage of these opportunities, assist 
parents in making open enrollment decisions, and pick a specific place where 
lists of specialized courses and programs are distributed throughout the district.  
In conclusion, school districts must especially nurture students from low-income 
families.  Part of this task is doing more to let the uninformed parents know 
about opportunities that exist for their children.  These opportunities should also 
be available for higher-income students.  Assembly Bill 348 will take a step in 
this direction.  Thank you for your time; I encourage you to support this 
important legislation.  I would be happy to answer any questions. 
 
Assemblywoman Mastroluca: 
I want to thank you for bringing this forward.  As a freshman in high school, 
I was a very low performing student.  I was never given information about the 
opportunities open to me.  I was unofficially voted by my class to be the one 
“least likely to attend college”.  Having this information available publicly would 
have had an impact on my life.  I cannot say it would have changed it, but I 
would have known that these opportunities were available.  As a parent, I have 
worked very hard to ensure that my children take advantage of the 
opportunities available to them.  As an involved parent, I have learned 
the difference between honors and advanced placement courses which takes 
some work.  Having that information available is excellent.  The question I have 
is that A.B. 348 includes all schools; how do you perceive this information 
being beneficial at an elementary school level? 
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Assemblyman Munford: 
As a teacher myself, I have experience with many students who were not 
involved in the honors or advanced placement programs because it was 
not available to them and I believe they should have had that opportunity.  They 
should have been encouraged to see the benefits from those programs.  In 
terms of the elementary level, I do not have direct experience, but I know at 
some elementary schools there needs to be alertness.  Parents have to be 
informed of the availability and access to some of these events and programs 
schools have for students who demonstrate academic ability.  They are not 
being informed that there is a GATE program for those who are academically 
gifted.  At the elementary level, there seems to be a lack of communication.  
Many schools are on top of this and are communicating with parents, yet there 
are others that are lacking, which are the schools I am trying to reach with 
A.B. 348.  Primarily, this legislation would affect school counselors who would 
be in charge of distributing and formulating these lists of academic programs.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
I believe section 1, subsection 1, paragraphs (a) and (b) address the issue of 
appropriate grade level and what particular classes are available to that grade 
level.  I think the language is clear in saying that you are not talking about 
International Baccalaureate classes at the elementary level.  
 
Assemblywoman Dondero Loop: 
As an elementary school teacher for many years, we started to help children at 
a very young age believe they could succeed.  You are spot-on with 
A.B. 348.  In the classroom of many elementary, middle, and high schools, 
teachers display their diplomas so that students can see that they have the 
ability to achieve and succeed.  We must start when they are very young to 
make these students mindful to stay on the right track.  This influence happens 
in elementary school; it may not be a listing of an advanced placement 
chemistry class, but it lets them know that by taking a math or science class 
ahead, they are able to move on to the next class and continue to transition 
to bigger and better things. 
 
Assemblyman Munford: 
I sincerely feel that there are some administrators in schools who are on top of 
this and are already doing this.  I just want to alert schools who are not doing it 
that it is time for them to develop something to make this information available 
in their schools. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
I would first like to note that there is a Sandy Miller Baccalaureate  
Elementary School in the Clark County School District (CCSD), so the 
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International Baccalaureate information would need to be made available to 
them.  We do have two amendments to this bill.  
 
Jeanette K. Belz, representing Academy for Career Education, Charter High 

School, Reno, Nevada: 
The amendment that I am submitting is alluding to the original bill (Exhibit Q), 
not to what Mr. Munford just said about a possible amendment to make it easier 
for the schools.  I apologize for that.  Our amendment was assuming that the 
bill related to the programs that were available to pupils enrolled in the school 
district, not within the particular school.  So, our amendment was based on that 
original premise to add the charter school program possibilities that children 
could have access to.  If the Committee decides to process it within the school, 
that makes that amendment a little more difficult.  Our intent is to make charter 
school options available to students as well. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
I do not know what would prevent us from doing both.  If we had some generic 
information on the school district website, you are asking that the charter 
schools in that district be listed? 
 
Jeanette Belz: 
That would be great. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
Thank you.  We have one more amendment to A.B. 348 from Washoe County 
School District and Clark County School District which will be presented by 
Bryn Lapenta. 
 
Bryn Lapenta, Senior Director, Public Policy, Accountability and Assessment, 

Washoe County School District, Reno, Nevada: 
I would like to thank Mr. Munford for being open to our concern of having the 
office plastered with all of the different posters.  The amendment we are 
proposing relates to that concern (Exhibit R).  It might be a little more 
attention-grabbing if there was a specific person for parents to see to request 
that information.   
 
Chair Parnell: 
So, your amendments are in sections 16 through 22 and listed in your handout 
(Exhibit R)? 
 
Bryn Lapenta: 
That is correct. 
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Bart Mangino, Carson City, Nevada, Legislative Representative, Clark County 
School District, Las Vegas, Nevada: 

I think that Mr. Munford’s bill also goes along with A.B. 243, Mrs. Mastroluca’s 
bill, as another way of making inroads as far as those programs being available 
to students.  Starting at the elementary level is important because the more 
information the parents have, the more likely students are to be enrolled in 
these programs.  We appreciate Assemblyman Munford’s position on A.B. 348. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
We need to find a way to accommodate the broader picture since different high 
schools offer different programs.  I invite Bryn Lapenta and Jeanette Belz to 
work together to establish language that everybody feels comfortable with.  
 
Keith Rheault, Ph.D., Superintendent of Public Instruction, Department of 

Education: 
I signed up neutral on A.B. 348.  I support getting the information to parents, 
but I have some suggestions.  I strongly support students being informed of all 
the courses available to them.  If you recall from 2007, ninth graders were 
required to create four-year academic plans.  Rather than just posting 
information somewhere, which may not be as effective, my suggestion would 
be that you could consider tying it to information provided during the four-year 
academic plan.  It probably already is in 99 percent of the cases anyway, and to 
me, it would be more effective if it was tied to something.  That way you can 
gear it to the specific school if you have International Baccalaureate and 
advanced placement courses at the school, and it would be part of the four-year 
plan discussion because it is supposed to be done in consultation with parents 
anyway.  Therefore, it is more effective when it is all connected, rather than 
just a posting of information.  It is a little more difficult at the elementary level, 
but if you recall, we also have an educational involvement accord, and in either 
2005 or 2007 there was a list of things we had to provide parents with.  If you 
want to tie in the elementary information on different programs, that should be 
included in the parental educational accord so it has some meaning as opposed 
to simply posting it on a blackboard.  No one will go look at it if they do not 
know that it is there. Those are my suggestions. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
The middle school bill that was dropped last Friday requires the entering year of 
middle school/junior high to also have the academic plan.  That is another 
occasion where you could give that information in a specific way. 



Assembly Committee on Education 
March 23, 2009 
Page 37 
 

 

Keith Rheault: 
If you can connect it while you are meeting with parents already, I think it will 
have more meaning and effect rather than just putting another posting of 
information. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
I know most schools in Washoe County have a Career Center which is a place 
that would already have that type of information posted. 
 
Keith Rheault: 
I think if you look in a High School Student Handbook, all of this information 
would be there.  Yet, I think if someone specifically points it out during the 
academic planning, it emphasizes it more. 
 
Chair Parnell: 
We will get people together and work something out.  We all agree that it is a 
great bill. 
 
Assemblyman Hardy: 
I think we have already addressed the issue in statute of parents who are 
separated or divorced.  We do not have to get to every single parent who may 
not be in the loop.  That could be put in here somewhere so that it works better 
where parents are estranged or involved in court orders.  
 
Chair Parnell: 
Thank you.  Are there any comments? 
 
Juanita Simpson, Teacher, Clark County School District, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
I am in support of A.B. 348, and my concern is the educational programs and 
services available within the school district in the summer.  We hosted a parent 
information meeting on January 21 at the Doolittle Center which incorporated 
the career academies and the magnet schools.  Is this a part of this bill?   
 
Chair Parnell: 
I do not believe so.  This is the bill that talks about posting information with 
regards to advanced placement classes, honors classes, and GATE programs 
available in the district. 
 
Juanita Simpson: 
So, it is not pertaining to the career academies or the magnet schools and 
programs that are available of that nature? 
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Chair Parnell: 
It could be.  Ms. Belz gave us an amendment that would ask the school district 
to make known the charter schools, in your case magnet schools, available in 
the district.  
 
Juanita Simpson: 
My major concern relates to the parent information meeting we held on 
January 21.  We had approximately 400 parents and students attend, and we 
conducted this meeting in conjunction with Clark County School District 
administrators.  We did a lot of public relations (PR) in terms of getting the word 
out to parents.  What we discovered is that the bulk of the parents had no idea 
that we had these types of programs offered in the schools and a lot of them 
made comments that they wished they had programs like this available.  The 
Sandy Miller School was represented that night.  Various schools sent their 
counselors and they had displays out and we were very pleased at the number 
of parents in attendance.  I support informing the parents.  I think it is a very 
good idea and I would like to commend Assemblyman Munford and the others 
who are supporting the bill because parents are a key aspect of a child’s 
education.  I also think there is an imbalance of the percentages of ethnic 
minorities involved in a lot of these programs.  By informing and reaching out, 
we will be able to tap this untapped resource. 
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Chair Parnell: 
Thank you very much for testifying today.  Is there anyone else wishing to 
testify in support of A.B. 348?  Is there anyone here to oppose A.B. 348?  Is 
there anyone neutral on the bill?  With that, I will close the hearing on A.B. 348.  
Is there anyone wishing to make a public comment? 
 
[Meeting adjourned at 6:17 p.m.] 
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